
 

  
 
 
The Chemung County Library District, with 
neighborhood libraries in Big Flats, the 
Bookmobile, Elmira, Horseheads, Van Etten, 
West Elmira, and on the web at 
www.ccld.lib.ny.us 

 

 

Agenda 
 

The October 2019 meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Chemung County Library District will be held 
will be held on Thursday October 17, 2019 at 6:00 pm at the Big Flats, 78 Canal St. Big Flats, 
NY 14814. The agenda for the meeting is listed below.  If you are unable to attend, please inform Ms. 
Kappanadze (607-259-2646), Mrs. Mellott (733-8607), or Mr. Shaw (733-8611).   

 
1.  Call to order  
2.  Pledge of allegiance 
3.  Approval of minutes (document #2019-55)  
4.  Treasurer’s report 
 a) Financial report (document 2019-56)  
 b) Report of Unpaid Bills Detail (document 2019-57)  
5.  Correspondence  
6.  President’s report  
7.  Director’s Report 

Consent Item: Approval of Appointment of Holly Melott as Group Administrator for 
Health Insurance purposes  

Resolved that the CCLD Board of Trustees approve the Group Administrator as submitted. 
Consent Item: Approval of Appointment of Holly Melott as Records Retention Officer 
Resolved that the Board approve the Records Retention Officer as submitted. 

8.  Committee reports:   
a)  Executive Committee (Kappanadze)  
 1)  Report of the Committee meeting (document 2019-58) 
b)  Budget & Finance Committee (Schamel) 
 1)  Report of the Committee meeting (document 2019-59)  

 c)  Building & Grounds Committee (Schwesinger) 
 1)  Report of the Committee meeting (document 2019-60) 

 d) Personnel Committee (Dworkin)  
 e) Election and Continuity Committee (Rogan) 
 f) Advocacy Committee  
9. Executive Session 
10.  Old business     
11.  New business 
12.  Period for public expression  
13.  Adjournment  
 



(Minutes of the SEPTEMBER 19, 2019 meeting of the Chemung County Library District 
Board of Trustees. Document #2019-55)  
 
The meeting was called to order at 6:00pm by President Marge Kappanadze. Present were 
Pat Silvernail, Ann Hayes, Pam Larnard, Martha Smith, Jack Schamel, Lillian White, Karl 
Schwesinger, Kevin Hansen, Rachel Dworkin, Phyllis Rogan, Lee Saginario, Bonnie Chollet 
and Jessica Roberts. Excused: Tim Blandford. Also present were Holly Melott and Ron 
Shaw, the Library District’s Administration. 
 
Minutes.  The minutes of the August 2019 meeting (Document #2019-49) were presented 
for board review. The minutes of the August meeting were approved as distributed by 
unanimous consent. 
 
Financial  Report. The August 31, 2019 Financial Report (Document #2019-50) was 
presented for board review. Mr. Schamel moved, seconded by Mr. Hansen to accept the 
Financial Report dated 8/31/19 as presented in writing. VOTE: Unanimously Approved.   
 
Report of Unpaid Bills (Document #2019-51).  Mr. Schamel moved, seconded by Ms. 
Hayes that the board authorize the payment of the unpaid bills dated 9/11/19 for the Grant 
Fund - $3,933.09 and General Fund - $44,743.62 as distributed in writing. VOTE: 
Unanimously Approved.    

 
Correspondence.   None 
  
President’s Report.  President Kappanadze expressed concern about pest reports from the 
Children’s Department at the Steele Library.  Discussion ensued about food and primarily 
diaper changing concerns. The general consensus was that CCLD should not change the 
rules regarding food in the library.   
 
Director’s Report.  Mr. Shaw reported on the following: 
Van Etten Library. The move to the new building is ready for books to be transported from 
the old building to the new one.  Mr. Shaw has been in touch with Dimon & Bacorn to get 
information for them to bring a truck and move the boxes and equipment.  Ms. Dworkin 
moved, seconded by Mr. Schamel that Mr. Shaw be authorized to contract with Dimon & 
Bacorn at a cost of not more than $1,500 to move these items to the new Van Etten Library 
building. VOTE: Unanimously Approved.  
Library of Things. Staff members are considering what type of items to lend out as well as 
formulating a lending policy/patron release form.  
STLS issues. A survey of library directors in the system has resulted in Lynda.com not being 
renewed.  Freegal is also being evaluated since only about 4 libraries have patrons who 
utilize the service.  There is a meeting of the DAC committee next week where these issues 
will be discussed. 
Promenade issues. A committee has been formed with Librarian Maggie Young representing 
CCLD. The group has been tasked with walking the Promenade and noting what needs 
attention.  Mr. Schamel has received information requested from the City regarding the 
Promenade and is reviewing the paperwork. He encouraged board members to talk about 
concerns and to attend City Council meetings. Ms. Kappanadze encouraged members to go 
to the council board meetings well informed about the issues.  
 



CONSENT ITEM: Approval of the Personnel Actions for May (Appendix C). Resolved by 
Ms. Larnard, seconded by Ms. Dworkin that the CCLD Board of Trustees approves the 
Personnel actions as submitted.  VOTE: Unanimously Approved. 
 
The Director's Report (Appendix A) and the CCLD Staff Reports (Appendix B) for last 
month were submitted in writing to the board.  

Executive Committee.  The report of the Executive Committee was presented in writing to 
the board (Document #2019-52). The report was corrected to reflect that two members were 
not in attendance at the September meeting.  

Budget & Finance Committee.  The report of the Budget & Finance Committee meeting 
was presented in writing to the board (Document #2019-53). Mr. Schamel stated that CCLD 
is still within budget.  For those accounts which appear to be overspent, there was income 
received and spent that was not included in the budget line on the report. They are in fact not 
overspent.  
 
CONSENT ITEM: Approval 990 signing.  Resolved by Ms.  Dworkin, seconded by Ms. 
Smith that the CCLD Board of Trustees authorize the Director to sign the Form 990 as 
submitted. VOTE: Unanimously Approved.  
 
Buildings & Grounds Committee. The report of the Buildings & Grounds Committee 
meeting was presented in writing to the board (Document #2019-54).  Ms. Smith stated that 
the acoustic tiles for the Teen Space have been ordered. Installation will take a total of 8 
weeks. Mr. Shaw stated that the ceiling lights and receptacles for the Space have been 
installed at a cost of $6,314.   
 
Mr. Shaw reported that the West Elmira Library Boiler project is underway.  The old one 
has been removed and the project should be completed within 3 days.  Regarding the 
upgrade to the Steele Staff Kitchen, Mr. Butcher has submitted proposed plans/drawings that 
will be reviewed by staff members.  There is no update on the exterior sign at Steele.  The 
application for a NYS Construction grant for a new boiler at Steele has been submitted.  
 
CONSENT ITEM: Approval of Security Cameras at the Steele Library.  Resolved by Ms. 
Smith, seconded by Ms. Hayes that the CCLD Board of Trustees approve the security 
camera proposal from FAST as submitted. VOTE: Unanimously Approved.  
 
Personnel Committee. Ms. Dworkin stated that the board self evaluation forms have been 
distributed.  They are due back to the Committee prior to the October Executive Committee 
meeting.  She hopes that the Committee will be able to create a plan based on needs and to 
address one concern each month.  
 
Election & Continuity Committee. Ms. Rogan stated that the Trustee Election will take 
place on Election Day, November 5th. Residents can vote at Steele and Horseheads between 
the hours of 12 noon and 7pm.  The Business Office received petitions for the 3rd, 4th and 
13th districts.  A resident of the 8th district expects to run as a write-in on the ballot.  Ms. 
Cook, the Election Commissioner, has inspectors lined up to work the election.  The 
Committee is requesting that Mr. Shaw be sure that Library District staff members are aware 
of the elections and what is happening that day so that they can answer any questions they 
get regarding the election.  
 
Advocacy Committee.  No report  



 
Old Business.  Ms. Larnard reported that the Friends of the Horseheads Library raised 
$8,700 from their recent book sale.  
 
Ms. Silvernail expressed concerns about trees/plants growing in the drain pipe at Big Flats. 
The County Buildings & Grounds will be contacted.  She also reported that the Friends of 
CCLD continue to have book sales in the library. She encouraged other board members to 
attend and support Friends meetings and events. Their “Books Sandwiched In” fall series 
starts September 27th.  
 

New Business.  Ms. Chollet noted that the Steuben Library is working with the Rockwell 
Museum and incorporating storytelling around their displays and artifacts.  Is it possible for 
CCLD to partner with the Arnot Art Museum or Chemung Historical Museum to do offer a 
similar program to Chemung County residents.  
 
 
 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:50pm. The next regular meeting of the board will be held 
on Thursday, October 17th, 2019 at 6:00pm at the West Elmira Library, 1231 West Water 
Street, Elmira, NY. 















 Document #2019-58 
 
Report of the October 2nd, 2019 meeting of the Executive Committee of the 
Chemung County Library District:   
 
The meeting came to order at 6:00pm. Attending the meeting from the Executive 
Committee were Marge Kappanadze, Jack Schamel, Phyllis Rogan and Martha Smith and 
Holly Melott, Joan Santulli and Ronald Shaw, CCLD management. Other board members 
in attendance were Rachel Dworkin, Pat Silvernail, Lee Saginario, Karl Schwesinger, 
Lillian White, Pam Larnard and Kevin Hansen.  
 
UNPAID BILLS:  Ms. Santulli and Ms. Melott submitted the Unpaid Bill List dated 
10/2/19 for the General Fund - $50,054.22 and the Grant Fund - $1,467.53. Mr. Schamel 
moved, seconded by Ms. Dworkin approve payment of the bills as submitted in writing.  
VOTE: Unanimously Approved. 
 
President Kappanadze viewed a webinar on “Connecting with Today’s Volunteers”. She 
shared a few things that were of note regarding recruiting younger people as volunteers.  
More information to follow.  
 
Director Ron Shaw gave the following reports: 
**Continuing Ed Day – November 8th.  There will be workshops in the morning, a free 
lunch at noon and a showing of staff member Stuart Finch’s mini promotional film as 
well as a showing of the movie “The Public”.  Board members are invited to attend.  If 
planning to have lunch that day, please notify the business office.   
**Policies.   A proposed Workplace Violence Policy will be sent to the board for review. 
The Social Media Policy has been sent to the CCLD attorney for review. 
**Awards. CCLD has won the “Outstanding Promotional Video” award from STLS and 
the “Tubie” video award from the South Central Regional Library Council (SCRLC). 
This is the second time CCLD has received this award. 
 
 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 6:13pm.  The next meeting of the Executive Committee of the 
Chemung County Library District will be held on Wednesday, November 6th, 2019 at 
6pm in the Petrie Conference Room of the Steele Memorial Library.   



Document #2019-59 
 
Report of the October 9th, 2019 meeting of the Budget & Finance Committee of the 
Chemung County Library District.  
 
Attending the meeting were CCLD board members Marge Kappanadze, Lillian White and Joan 
Santulli, Holly Melott, and Ron Shaw, CCLD Administration. The meeting opened at 8:00 a.m.  
 
Ms. Santulli & Ms. Melott presented the September 30th, 2019 Financial Report to the 
Committee. The Report will be forwarded to the full CCLD board for its consideration.  
 
Ms. Santulli and Ms. Melott presented the Unpaid Bills Detail dated 10/17/19 for the General 
Fund - $8,915.10 and Grant Fund - $14,566.58. The Unpaid Bills Details will be forwarded to 
the full CCLD board for its consideration.  
 
Mr. Shaw stated that he will be filing the Property Tax Cap report for the 2020 budget to New 
York State this week. He will also be sending out the election legal notice with 2019 polling 
places to the Star Gazette this week. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:05am.  The next meeting of the Budget & Finance Committee will 
be held on Wednesday, November 13, 2019 at 8:00am in the Petrie Conference Room of the 
Steele Memorial Library.   
 



Document #2019-60 
 
Report of the October 2nd, 2019 meeting of the Buildings & Grounds Committee of the Chemung 
County Library District 
 
The meeting opened at 5:30 pm. Present were Mr. Schwesinger, Ms. Smith, Ms. Saginario and Ms. 
Kappanadze.  Also attending were Joan Santulli, Holly Melott, and Ronald Shaw, CCLD 
Management. 
 
The Committee received reports on the following: 
 
Boiler at Steele. The application to receive $157,000 in State Construction funding from STLS for 
the boiler at Steele has been approved by them. The actual receipt of the grant money may not take 
place until late next year.  CCLD has reserve funds set aside that could be used to pay for the 
project until the grant funds are received.  Mr. Schwesinger suggested that CCLD hire an 
engineering firm to design the project now so that the project can be completed by the end of 
summer 2020. LaBella will be contacted for a quote.  

Staff Room/Kitchen at Steele. Bob Butcher has submitted a design.  Mr. Shaw showed it to the 
Department Heads at their meeting today.  Cabinet styles and colors will be chosen by staff.  

West Elmira Library. The installation of new furnaces has been completed.  

Van Etten Library.    The library is closed this week to make the move to the new building.  

The meeting adjourned at 5:40pm.  
 
The next regular meeting of the Buildings & Grounds Committee will be held on Wednesday, 
November 6th, 2019 at 5:30pm in the Petrie Conference Room at the Steele Memorial Library. 
 
 





 

  

 
 
The Chemung County Library District, with 
neighborhood libraries in Big Flats, the 
Bookmobile, Elmira, Horseheads, Van Etten, 
West Elmira, and on the web at 
www.ccld.lib.ny.us 

 

 

To: CCLD Board of Trustees  

 

From: Ronald W. Shaw, Director 

 

Date: September 11, 2019 

 

Subject: Approval of Personnel Actions  

 

 

Promotions: 

N/A 

 

Change FT/PT Status: 

N/A 

 

Retirement: 

N/A 

 

End of Probationary Period- Permanent Appointment: 

N/A 

 

New Hires: 

N/A 

 

Resignations: 

N/A 

 

Terminations: 

N/A 

 

Leave: 

N/A 

 

Step Increases: 

Brittanie Moyer- PT Library Page to Step 3 

 

http://www.ccld.lib.ny.us/


Steele Circulation and A/V Notes for Board, September 2019 
 

September is Library Card Sign up Month, and the beautifully designed Wizard of Oz 
promotional card proved to be quite popular, we sold 118 cards at Steele with 48 brand new 
patrons opting for the new card over the regular CCLD card (many patrons like that the regular 
card has the key tag attachment that can be removed.) Circulation staff was also busy with 
handing out scratch offs for every check out and small prizes to the winners. 
39 new accounts were sent to Collections this month and and Unique shows in their monthly 
account updates that there were $146.19 in dollars received last month and $764.87 in materials 
returned for the month of September. 
Notes left in the Comment box include: 
“Too loud for a library.” 
“Dear Library Director, I’m very concerned about your recent bathroom key change. It has been 
successful for decades in identifying which gender should use each. Please continue to allow 
gender specific keys to be used. Thank You.” 
“If the computers are going to shut down ½ hour before the library closes then it should be 
posted.” 
“Instead of buying Trump’s book, why not large print enjoyable books. We get the message, 
time to change your outputs & line”(?unsure of this last word) 
Workshops/Webinars/Meetings: 
Janet attended the Dept. Head Mtg. on Sept 3 
Janet met with Midwest Tapes, Erin on Sept. 18 
Janet went to preview new staff chairs with Connie and Jennie in Corning on Sept 19 
Janet attended the training for Blue Cloud Analytics on Sept. 23 
 
 

Steele Youth Board Notes for September 16 – October 12 
Programs:  
 
The youth department is continuing weekly story times on Friday mornings; these continue to be 
well attended.  Our ongoing monthly themed scavenger hunt in the children’s area, we concluded 
Aladdin theme for September and began Ronald Dahl’s The Witches for October.  We hosted an 
after-hours Aladdin movie and craft family night on Friday September 20th.  October 3rd we 
hosted BINGO.  Toon Tuesday on September 24th was Big Hero 6 and Inside Out will be on 
October 8th.  We will start a 4 part Money program for adults and children on September 24th. 
We attended an open house at Hendy Elementary School on Tuesday October 24th.  September 
30th we will hold a Rosh Hashanah craft program. Money as you grow part 2 and 3 were held on 
October 1st and 8th.  Amanda, Jeffrey and Jennie are participating in Trunk or Treat at Wisner 
Park, representing CCLD.  Staff are decorating for Halloween and preparing for Spooky Stacks 
on Thursday October 24th. 
 
Adult Services Department Reports 
September, 2019 
Nonfiction and Reference 
Connie Ogilvie 
 
In the month of September, 2019 there were 511 queries on the Adult Services Desk and 272 
questions answered on the PC2 Desk.  The Nonfiction book display theme for the month of 
September was created for “Banned Books Week.”  This display included Fiction and Nonfiction 
books and the display was created by Maggie, Caroline , and Sean. 



Management Meeting was held September 2, 2019 
  
Blue Cloud Training  September 23, 2019 
 
Monthly Activities Report September 2019 
Fiction and Outreach 
Caroline Poppendeck 
~Received and began processing HH Seed Lending collection. 
~Continued to plan Fall Continuing Ed Day. 
~Elmira College Service Fair – CCLD’s presence to have students sign up for mandatory service 
hours. 
~CCLD Blog Entry – new short story books. 
~Compiled recommendations for library podcast. 
~Age Friendly meeting – meetings have resumed after a hiatus due to Office of the Aging staff 
changes and an in-depth community survey to mark the needs of the community’s senior citizens 
and the organizations that assist them. 
~Assisted patron with the technical aspects of Books Sandwiched In presentation. 
~Pathways to Employment Outreach - – I travel to this class to bring library services information 
to those re-entering the work world, describing ways the library can help them and their families, 
and invite them to use or get a library card and discover their local library. 
~Blue Cloud Training. 
~Webinar – Crash Course in Horror. 
~WENY Midday Makeover – TV spot featuring new books for the month. This month the books 
were The Tale Teller (Leaphorn & Chee #23), by Anne Hillerman, A Hero Born (Legends of the 
Condor Heroes #1), by Jin Yong, and The Devil's Slave (Frances Gorges Trilogy #2), by Tracy 
Borman. 
 
Genealogy and Local History 
Maggie Young 
 
MICROFILM STATS 
magazine fiche   -0- 
newspapers   -123- 
census film    -2- 
vital states    -5- 
misc      -0- 
 
DIGITAL NEWSPAPER STATS September 2019 
 
TITLE                                         Total Pages  Page Views 
The Elmira gazette. (1828 - 185?) 36,739 1,236 
Havana journal. (1849 - 1893) 415 88 
The Valley breeze. (1891 - 19??) 4,239 86 
Elmira daily bazoo. (1877 - 1877) 601 67 
The summary. (1883 - 19??) 542 31 
 
Update on Latest Digitization Project: Early Elmira Newspapers are beginning to be added to 



NYS Historic Newspapers October 2019.  
Once uploaded, we will be able to track their usage and the success of this project to see if we 
want to apply for more funds to digitize papers up to 1924 next year.  
 
PROGRAMS: 
Tues Nov 3: Ukulele 
Mon Sept 9: Brick Wall Busting Genealogy Lab 
MEETINGS: 
Elmira Promenade Committee Meeting 
Meeting with Lynne Rusinko, Community Arts  
LIBRARY OF THINGS 
CCHS Museum Pass: Awaiting circ rules (STLS) 
CAKE PANS: Done 
 
REGULAR DUTIES ONGOING: 
Assisting researchers 
Assisting phone queries 
Indexing papers with volunteers 
Distance research 
Adult Programming 
Jennie Lewis 
Each month at Steele Memorial Library, a variety of programs for adults are planned.  Some are 
taught/led by library staff and others by paid outside instructors or community members 
(volunteers). 
A list of events for the month can be found in our newsletter:  http://ccld.lib.ny.us/newsletter/ 
Events are also listed on our online events calendar: 
http://ccld.mhsoftware.com/ViewCal.html?calendar_id=2 
Monthly brochures and signs were updated. 
Social Media/Website/Newsletter 
Posts to the various Social Media accounts continued this month as well as regular website 
updates.  The electronic newsletter went out, highlighting events throughout CCLD. 
Magazines & Adult Graphic Novel Collection 
 
Monthly orders were placed and routine collection development issues were attended to. 
Bookmobile 
Kim Jones 
 
Sept 13th- BMK Book club 9 people 
Oct 5th- Shine the light on Domestic violence event- 37 people 
Oct 7th- Kim took bus back to garage for leaking in emergency hatch then went and got some 
self-leveling chalk for the garage. 
 
Teen Services 
Steele Library 
Doris Jean Metzger, MLIS 
 
Doris Jean attended school open houses at Broadway Academy and Elmira High School. Lots of 
interest in the new teen space from teens & parents!  
Two of our Teens participated in the Teen book panel discussion during the Friends' Books 
Sandwiched In Series.  

http://ccld.lib.ny.us/newsletter/
http://ccld.mhsoftware.com/ViewCal.html?calendar_id=2


Networked with Chemung County Youth Court about the possibility of having young teens do 
supervised reading at the library as an option for Community Service.  
New, weekly Dungeons & Dragons program is bringing several new teens into the teen space 
each week! 
 
 
Information Technology Department/Makerspaces - Deb Brimmer 

September 2019 
 
 

Information Technology Department: 
 

 Continuing to work on the new software provided by STLS to manage the computers 
remotely to get it working properly 

 Deployed and migrated a new Envisionware server at VanEtten and Big Flats 
 Conducted several interviews for temporary Computer Technician.  
 Went to VanEtten and disassembled and packed computers and network equipment to be 

moved to the new building. 
 Assisted with the Tinker Lab expansion 
 Continue to work with MicroSolutions on 4 virtual servers for CCLD in preparation for 

our Win 10 upgrade 
 Worked on creating base images for Windows 10 
 Prepared Tech Lab for Blue Cloud Analytics training 
 Participated in email security training sessions in preparation for an upcoming Library 

System wide training for phishing, ransomware and cybersecurity awareness 

CCLD Makerspaces  

Tinker Lab: 

 Corresponded with Jeannette Burnett about providing instruction for sewing workshops 
 Created promotional materials for sewing workshops, set up registration and payment 

materials 
 Made new restroom keychains for A and B restrooms 
 Taught Photo Restoration and Limestone Engraving workshops 

In General:  

 Created Makerspace promotional materials for Manufacturing Day at GST BOCES 
 Prepared activities for Manufacturing Day at GST BOCES 
 Created work schedule spreadsheet for 2020 
 Assembled and deployed furniture for new Makerspace expansion and installed new 

shelving 
 Provided laser engraving orientation for Elmira College Graphic Design class 

September 2019 Stats 
 



Tinker Lab attendance: 269 
 
Certifications: 
     Digital Media Lab: 4 
     3D printers: 0 
 
Digital Media Lab usage: 
     Staff: 0 
     Patron: 4 
 
Sales: 
     3D prints: $76.42 
     Crafts: $5.90 
     Laser materials: $20.75 
     Laser usage: $120.79 
     Donation: $9.36 
     Total: $233.22 

Horseheads 
9/16—Owen attended the Friends of the Horseheads Free Library Meeting-there was a review of 
the annual book sale which grossed $8,448, 
9/23—Owen visited Van Etten Branch—observed the preparation of the move and conducted a 
tablet talk session 
9/25—Owen the STLS DAC meeting at the Montour Falls Library 
9/25—Owen attended the Public Library Foundation of  Chemung County Meeting 
10/1—Owen attended the CCLD Management Meeting, 
Kelly Brown conducted weekly story times and craft 
Becky Jackson conducted weekly Home school program 
Big Flats 
9/17-Secret life of Pets screening, 
9/18-Weekly story times started with Ms Melanie. 
9/25-Glenice conducted story time at the Big Flats Preschool 
10/4-10/6 Glenice attended CSEA fall conference in Fairport, NY 
10/8-Toy Story 4 screening, 
10/11-Diamond Painting Club starts, 
10/15-Build a bear night 
 


	Agenda 2019-10
	Document 2019-55
	Document 2019-57
	Document 2019-58
	Document 2019-59
	Document 2019-60
	Doocument 2019-56
	Appendix C Personnel Actions October 2019
	Monthly Report October Board 2019

